
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
P.O. Box 190, Prosser, WA  99350-0190; Phone (509) 786-5600 or (509) 736-3080, Fax (509) 786-5625 

commissioners@co.benton.wa.us 
 
 

    
  
 
 
                      

                                                                               
   

AGENDA (REVISED) 
BOARD OF BENTON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

Regular Board Meeting 
Tuesday, May 15, 2012 

Benton County Courthouse, Prosser, WA 
 
              9:00 AM Call to Order 
   Approval of Minutes    

 May 8, 2012 
   Review Agenda 
 

Consent Agenda  
  

Animal Control 
a. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 137 
Assessor 
b.  Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 101 
Auditor   
c. Interlocal Agreement w/City of Benton City for Ballot Drop Box 
d. Interlocal Agreement w/City of West Richland for Ballot Drop Box 
Commissioners 
e. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 107   
f. Payment Authorization to Design West Architects, PA for District Court Remodel Study   
g. Procedures and Guidelines on Benton County & Bi-County Non-Bargaining Positions; 

Rescinding Resolution 11-243 
Facilities 
h. Purchase Authorization for Video Monitoring Equipment from URS Electronics  
i. Contract w/Stoncor Group, Inc. dba Stonhard for Jail Kitchen Floor Repair 
Human Services 
j. Grant Agreement w/Housing Authority of the City of Pasco and Franklin County 
k. Agreement w/Vista Youth Center 
Juvenile 
l.  Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0115-101, Depts. 171, 173 & 174 
Office of Public Defense 
m.  Payment Authorization for Attorney D Hanson for District Court Cases 
n. Termination of District Court Public Defense Contract w/E Riley 
Personnel 
o.  Authorizing County Risk Manager to Settle Claim CC2011-27 

   Planning 
p. Contract w/The Watershed Company to Update the Benton Co. Shoreline Master Program 

Leo Bowman 
District 1 

Shon Small 
District 2 

James Beaver 
District 3 

Board of County Commissioners 
BENTON COUNTY 

David Sparks 
County Administrator 

 
Loretta Smith Kelty 

Deputy County Administrator 

mailto:commissioners@co.benton.wa.us
CurrentUser
Text Box
To view items in detail, please click on highlighted area

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight



___________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
P.O. Box 190, Prosser, WA  99350-0190;   Phone (509) 786-5600 or (509) 736-3080,   Fax (509) 786-5625 

commissioners@co.benton.wa.us 
 

Agenda – Board of County Commissioners 
May 15, 2012 
Page Two 
 

 
Prosecuting Attorney 
q.  Salary Request Statement 
Public Works 
r. Granting Franchise to Lightspeed Networks, Inc.   

          
9:05 AM Scheduled Business: 
 
  Expanded SWAT Services – Sheriff Keane 
 
  WSU Cooperative Update – M Ophardt 
 
  Animal Control Update – K Mercer 
 

Unscheduled Visitors 
   Board Assignment Update  

mailto:commissioners@co.benton.wa.us
CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight



 - 1 - 

MINUTES 
 

BOARD OF BENTON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
 

Regular Board Meeting 
Tuesday, May 8, 2012, 9:00 a.m. 

Commissioners’ Conference Room  
Benton County Courthouse, Prosser, WA 

 
 
Present: Chairman Pro Tem Shon Small 
  Commissioner Leo Bowman  
  County Administrator David Sparks   
  Clerk of the Board Cami McKenzie 
 
Absent: Chairman James Beaver (Excused) 
 
Benton County Employees Present During All or a Portion of the Meeting: Deputy 
Administrator Loretta Smith Kelty; Adam Fyall, Sustainable Development Manager; Finance 
Manager Keith Mercer; Personnel Manager Melina Wenner; Human Services Manager Ed 
Thornbrugh; Public Works Manager Steve Becken; Planning Manager Mike Shuttleworth; 
County Engineer Malcolm Bowie; R.J. Lott, Planning; DPA Ryan Brown; Treasurer Duane 
Davidson; Clerk Josie Delvin; Jacki Lahtinen, District Court; Central Services Manager Randy 
Reid; Auditor Brenda Chilton.   
 
Approval of Minutes 
 
The Minutes of May 1, 2012 and Special Minutes of May 1, 2012 were approved.   
 
Consent Agenda 
 
MOTION:  Commissioner Bowman moved to approve the consent agenda items “a” through 
“f”.  Commissioner Small seconded and upon vote, the Board approved the following: 
 
Commissioners 

a. Ridges to Rivers Open Space Network Support Letter  
b. Older Americans Month Proclamation   

Prosecuting Attorney 
c. Amendment to Collective Bargaining Agreement for Juvenile Clerical 
d. Settlement Agreement w/Teamsters Local 839, Representing Juvenile Detention 

Public Works 
e. Granting Franchise to Public Utility District No. 1 
f. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0155-101, Dept. 000 

 
 
 



 - 2 - 

The Board briefly recessed, reconvening at 9:05 a.m.  
 
Public Hearing – Short Plat Vacation - SPV 12-02 
 
R.J. Lott said the Planning Department received an application by Dale and Peggy Wood 
requesting the 170-foot taxi and runway and 70-foot taxiway easement be vacated off the face of 
the short plat.  He said that all property owners within 300 feet were notified and signed the 
vacation application and all concerned agencies were notified with no adverse comments 
received. 
 
He said they received a copy of a letter this today from applicants (entered into the record) 
requesting the condition to revoke their special use permit be removed.  Mr. Lott said that was 
okay with the Planning Department to remove that condition.  
 
Testimony 
 
Bob Page, owner of the parcel adjoining the applicant, asked if they would still be able to use the 
runway once they relinquished the right for the easement since the FAA required an easement 
and special use permit.  
 
As there was no one else present to testify, public testimony was closed.   
 
R.J. Lott said if the applicant still wanted to land airplanes on the property, they would need to 
abide by all conditions of the special use permit and one was a requirement to file paperwork 
with the FAA.  He said the FAA would review any easements and give approval for that runway.   
 
Commissioner Bowman requested the public hearing be continued for two weeks to receive 
additional information.  Chairman Pro Tem Small agreed.    
 
The public hearing was continued to May 22, 2012 at 9:05 a.m. and testimony would be left 
open.  
 
Public Hearing – Short Plat Vacation - SPV 12-03 
 
R.J. Lott said the applicant William Knight was requesting vacation of four separate easements 
and proposed a replacement 20-foot access easement to serve the two Lots of Short Plat 648 that 
match the current constructed access. 
 
The Planning Department recommended approval of the proposed vacation with conditions.  
 
As there was no one present to testify, public testimony was closed.   
 
MOTION:  Commissioner Bowman moved to approve the vacation of the 20-foot access 
easement, a 10-foot utility easement AF 770763, a 10-foot irrigation easement, and a 5-foot 
irrigation easement AF 770762 located on Short Plat 648.  The motion is conditioned upon the 
applicant, in coordination with Columbia Irrigation District, recording a document that 



 - 3 - 

relinquishes the underlying 5-foot irrigation easement within one year of the date of approval of 
the Board of Benton County Commissioners or the approval will be null and void.   
 
Upon vote, the motion carried unanimously.   
 
Executive Session – Pending Litigation  
 
The Board went into executive session at 9:20 a.m. for approximately 15 minutes to discuss 
pending litigation with DPA Ryan Brown.  Also present were Melina Wenner, Loretta Smith 
Kelty, David Sparks, and Cami McKenzie.  The Board came out of executive session at 9:34 
a.m.  Mr. Brown said the Board discussed pending litigation and took no action.   
 
MOTION: Commissioner Bowman moved to authorize the PA’s office to submit an offer of 
judgment to plaintiffs Crime, Justice & America Inc. and Ray Hrdlicka on behalf of Benton 
County and Sheriff Keane in the form deemed appropriate by the Prosecutor’s Office and for an 
amount not to exceed $3,000 plus fees and costs incurred to date by them as a procedural 
strategy in that lawsuit.  Commissioner Small seconded and upon vote, the motion carried 
unanimously.   
 
Commissioner Assignment Update 
 
Commissioner Bowman said he attended the WSAC board meeting and briefly discussed a 
presentation from Network of Care regarding a software program for veterans, etc. that helped 
find assistance programs.  It was currently being used in Snohomish County. 
 
Commissioner Small said he had a meeting with Marie Mosley, City of Kennewick.  
Additionally, he discussed a SECOMM meeting and the proposed disposition of two generators 
at the Prosser Middle School.   
 
Vouchers 
 
Check Date: 05/04/2012 
Warrant #: 57139-57333 
Total all funds: $1,888,302.23 
 
Check Date:  05/04/2012 
Warrant #: 233996-234099 
Direct Deposit #: 73615-74218 
Total all funds: $2,119,565.80 
 
Check Date:  05/04/2012 
Taxes #: 10112051-10112053 
Warrant #: 57334-57357 
Total all funds: $1,948,907.32 
 
Total amounts approved by fund can be reviewed in the Benton County Auditor’s Office. 



 - 4 - 

 
Resolutions 
 
2012-252: Older Americans Month Proclamation   
2012-253: Amendment to Collective Bargaining Agreement for Juvenile Clerical 
2012-254: Settlement Agreement w/Teamsters Local 839, Representing Juvenile Detention 
2012-255: Granting Franchise to Public Utility District No. 1 
2012-256: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0155-101, Dept. 000 
 
There being no further business before the Board, the meeting adjourned at approximately 9:40 
a.m.   
 
_______________________________   ______________________________ 
Clerk of the Board      Chairman 
 



CurrentUser
Text Box
a. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 137





CurrentUser
Text Box
b. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 101







 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date:  _____ 
Subject: Benton City  

Ballot Drop Box 
Prepared by:       Stuart Holmes 
Reviewed by: Brenda Chilton 

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract _____ 
Pass Resolution  __x___  
Pass Ordinance  _____  
Pass Motion  _____  
Other   ____ 

 
 
Consent Agenda            __x___  
Public Hearing            _____  
1st Discussion            _____ 
2nd Discussion            _____ 
Other             ____  

   
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
The Benton County Auditor’s Office received a HAVA Grant to install a drop box in the City of Benton City. 
 
The Auditor and the City of West Richland have agreed upon a location at City Hall to install the ballot drop box. 
 
The Auditor’s Office will coordinate with Facilities for installation and will maintain the box after installation. 
 
SUMMARY 
 
The City of Benton City, Benton County Disability Advisory Committee and the Benton County Auditor’s Office met and agreed 
upon a good location to install a ballot drop box in Benton City. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Pass resolution and sign Interlocal Agreement installing a drop box centrally located in the City of Benton City  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
  
$0 - Ballot Drop Box and installation equipment are in current inventory of election supplies 

 
 
MOTION 
 
Consent Agenda 
 

CurrentUser
Text Box
c. Interlocal Agreement w/City of Benton City for Ballot Drop Box



 
 
 
Cc: B. Chilton, Auditor; File; S. Holmes, Election Supervisor; R. Ozuna Chilton 

RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 
 
IN THE MATTER OF AUTHORIZING THE INSTALLATION OF A DROP BOX AT CITY HALL IN 
BENTON CITY 
 
WHEREAS, the Benton County Auditor received a Help America Vote Act (HAVA) grant to install a ballot 
drop box in the City of Benton City; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Benton City, Benton County Disability Advisory Committee and the Benton County 
Auditor have agreed upon a appropriate location to install a ballot drop box at the City Hall; NOW, 
THEREFORE 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, Benton County, Washington, the 
Board concurs with the City of Benton City and Benton County Auditor recommendation to install a drop box 
at the City hall in Benton City; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Chairman is authorized to sign the attached Interlocal Cooperative 
Agreement; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the term of the attached agreement commences on full execution thereof and 
expires on December 31, 2030. 
 
 
Dated this _________day of ___________________, 2012. 
 
       

_______________________________________ 
         Chairman of the Board 
 

_______________________________________ 
           Member 
 

_______________________________________ 
           Member 
       

Constituting the Board of County 
Commissioners of Benton County, 
Washington  

Attest: ___________________________ 
Clerk of the Board 





 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date:  _____ 
Subject: West Richland 

Ballot Drop Box 
Prepared by:       Stuart Holmes 
Reviewed by: Brenda Chilton 

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract _____ 
Pass Resolution  __x___  
Pass Ordinance  _____  
Pass Motion  _____  
Other   ____ 

 
 
Consent Agenda            __x___  
Public Hearing            _____  
1st Discussion            _____ 
2nd Discussion            _____ 
Other             ____  

   
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
Over the past few years, voters in the City of West Richland made it clear that they would like to have another drop box in their city. 
The Benton County Disability Advisory Committee recommended a ballot drop box be installed at City Hall/Library. 
 
The Benton County Auditor’s Office received a HAVA Grant to install a drop box in the City of West Richland. 
 
The Auditor and the City of West Richland have agreed upon a location at City Hall on Van Giesen to install the ballot drop box. 
 
The City of West Richland will install and the Auditor’s Office will maintain the box after installation. 
 
SUMMARY 
 
Voters in the City of West Richland requested that the Auditor install a drop box more centrally located in the city limits. In 2012, 
HAVA grant money was made available to install ballot drop boxes. The City of West Richland and Benton County Auditor’s Office 
met and agreed upon a good location to install a ballot drop box. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Pass resolution and sign Interlocal Agreement installing a drop box centrally located in the City of West Richland  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
  
Drop Box = $770 
Drop box shipping = $72  
Drop box posts = $85 
Drop box signage = $176 
* All covered by HAVA Grant  
 
 
MOTION 
 
Consent Agenda 
 

CurrentUser
Text Box
d. Interlocal Agreement w/City of West Richland for Ballot Drop Box



 
 
 
Cc: B. Chilton, Auditor; File; S. Holmes, Election Supervisor; R. Ozuna Chilton 

RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 
 
IN THE MATTER OF AUTHORIZING THE INSTALLATION OF A DROP BOX AT WEST RICHLAND 
CITY HALL 
 
WHEREAS, the Benton County Auditor received a Help America Vote Act (HAVA) grant to install a ballot 
drop box in the City of West Richland; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of West Richland and Benton County Auditor have agreed upon a appropriate 
location to install a ballot drop box at the City Hall on Van Giesen; NOW, THEREFORE 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, Benton County, Washington, the 
Board concurs with the City of West Richland and Benton County Auditor recommendation to install a drop 
box at the City Hall in West Richland; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Chairman is authorized to sign the attached Interlocal Cooperative 
Agreement; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the term of the attached agreement commences on full execution thereof and 
expires on December 31, 2030. 
 
Dated this _________day of ___________________, 2012. 
 
       

_______________________________________ 
         Chairman of the Board 
 

_______________________________________ 
           Member 
 

_______________________________________ 
           Member 
       

Constituting the Board of County 
Commissioners of Benton County, 
Washington  

Attest: ___________________________ 
Clerk of the Board 





CurrentUser
Text Box
e. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 107





CurrentUser
Text Box
f. Payment Authorization to Design West Architects, PA for District Court Remodel Study







cc: Commissioners; Payroll, All Other Departments  SMITHKELTY 

RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON: 
 
 
IN THE MATTER OF RESCINDING RESOLUTION 11-243 AND REINSTATING THE 
ESTABLISHMENT OF PROCEDURES AND GUIDELINES FOR REQUESTING, NEW 
EVALUATING AND APPROVING BENTON COUNTY AND BI-COUNTY NON-
BARGAINING POSITIONS AND RECLASSIFICATIONS 
 
WHEREAS, on April 11, 2011, per Resolution 11-243, the Board of Benton County 
Commissioners rescinded established procedures and guidelines for requesting, evaluating, and 
approving Benton County and Bi-County non-bargaining positions and limiting reclassifications; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Benton County Commissioners desire to reinstate the establishment 
of procedures and guidelines for requesting, evaluating, and approving Benton County and Bi-
County non-bargaining positions and reclassifications; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is the responsibility of the Board of Benton County Commissioners to approve 
any new positions and changes to existing positions, including classification descriptions and 
grades; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Benton County Commissioners desire to authorize the County 
Administrator to approve all requests brought before the Board relating to evaluating and 
approving any new Benton County and Bi-County non-bargaining positions and 
reclassifications; NOW, THEREFORE, 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of County Commissioners rescinds Resolution 11-243; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Board of Benton County Commissioners hereby 
authorizes the County Administrator to evaluate and bring forth requests relating to any Benton 
County and Bi-County non-bargaining positions based on individual circumstances presented in 
writing under the guidelines set below.  These requests must include one of the following: 
 

1. The new position is supported in its entirety through federal/state grants and the filling of 
the position is critical to fulfilling the grants or contract requirements and/or; and 

 
2. The new position is funded through a new revenue source or is supported through a fee-

based process and/or; and 
 

3. The elected official or department head is requesting a new non-bargaining position 
and/or reclassification and has identified on-going cost reduction (re-organization, 
contract vs. employee, etc.). 

CurrentUser
Text Box
g. Procedures and Guidelines on Benton County & Bi-County Non-Bargaining Positions;Rescinding Resolution 11-243



cc: Commissioners; Payroll, All Other Departments  SMITHKELTY 

 
Dated this . . . . . . . day of . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . , 20 . . . .  

 
 
 

       
Chairman of the Board  

 
       

Chairman Pro-Tem 
 

         
Member 

 
Constituting the Board of County 

Attest: . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .      Commissioners of Benton County, 
 Clerk of the Board      Washington 
 
 



CurrentUser
Text Box
h. Purchase Authorization for Video Monitoring Equipment from URS Electronics







CurrentUser
Text Box
i. Contract w/Stoncor Group, Inc. dba Stonhard for Jail Kitchen Floor Repair



 Orig: Facilities                                                                                                                                                                    K Mercer 
 cc: Auditor; Stonhard     

   

RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 
 

IN THE MATTER OF A PUBLIC WORKS CONTRACT FOR KITCHEN AREA FLOOR REPAIR 
SERVICES WITH STONCOR GROUP, INC, DOING BUSINESS AS STONHARD FOR THE BENTON 
COUNTY JAIL 
 
WHEREAS, per resolution 11-402, any public works services or materials involving less than $40,000, 
advertisement and competitive bidding may be dispensed, and such contracts may be entered into after 
direct negotiation and authorization from the Board of Benton County Commissioners; and  
 
WHEREAS, the kitchen floor in the Benton County Jail is in need of repair; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Building Maintenance Supervisor recommends entering into a Public Works Contract 
with Stonhard, Maple Shade, NJ – Contractors License STONCG1000KD to be put in place for kitchen 
area floor repair services for the Benton County Jail; NOW, THEREFORE 
 
BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, Benton County, Washington, the 
Board concurs with the Building Maintenance Supervisor’s recommendation and hereby awards StonCor 
Group, Inc., doing business as Stonhard the Public Works Contract for kitchen area floor repair services 
for the Benton County Jail for a total contract amount not to exceed $5,864.00 not including WSST; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED the Board hereby authorizes the Chairman to sign the public works 
contract attached hereto; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED the term of the attached contract commences upon execution and expires 
on December 31, 2012. 
 
 
Dated this  __________________ day of _____________, 2012. 
 
 

 ___________________________                   
 Chairman of the Board 

 
  

 ___________________________                
 Member 

 
 

 __________________________                
 Member 

  
 Constituting the Board of Commissioners 

of Benton County, Washington 
Attest....................................................... 
                     Clerk of the Board  

 





CurrentUser
Text Box
j. Grant Agreement w/Housing Authority of the City of Pasco and Franklin County











CurrentUser
Text Box
k. Agreement w/Vista Youth Center









CurrentUser
Text Box
l. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0115-101, Depts. 171, 173 & 174







CurrentUser
Text Box
m. Payment Authorization for Attorney D Hanson for District Court Cases





CurrentUser
Text Box
n. Termination of District Court Public Defense Contract w/E Riley





Cc: Auditor, Personnel Prepared by: B. Perry 

RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

IN THE MATTER OF AUTHORIZING THE BENTON COUNTY RISK MANAGER TO SETTLE CLAIM 
CC2011-27 
 
WHEREAS, the Benton County Risk Manager has reviewed claim number CC2011-27, along with the 
recommendation made by the assigned adjuster and recommends settlement; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Benton County Commissioners concur with the recommendation of the Benton 
County Risk Manager; NOW, THEREFORE, 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Benton County Commissioners hereby authorizes the settlement of 
claim CC2011-27 in the amount of $12,000 to be paid as reimbursement to the Washington Counties 
Risk Pool. 
 
Dated this  _____________ day of __________________, 2012. 
 
 ___________________________                
 Chairman of the Board 
 
  
 ___________________________              
 Member 
 
 
 ___________________________                
 Member 
  

   
 Constituting the Board of Commissioners 
 of Benton County, Washington 

Attest....................................................... 
                  Clerk of the Board 

 

CurrentUser
Text Box
o. Authorizing County Risk Manager to Settle Claim CC2011-27





AGENDA ITEM 

MEETING DATE:  MAY 15, 2012 
SUBJECT: Shoreline Master Program 
Contract 
MEMO DATE: MAY 8, 2012 
Prepared By: Michael Shuttleworth  
Reviewed By: Susan M. Walker 

TYPE OF ACTION 

NEEDED 

Execute Contract X 
Pass Resolution X 
Pass Ordinance  
Pass Motion 

Consent Agenda X 
Public Hearing  
1st Discussion  
2nd Discussion  
Other    

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
To improve and protect the state shoreline areas, the Washington State Legislature passed the 
Shoreline Management Act in 1971(RCW 90.58) which was later adopted by referendum vote in 

1972.  Benton County is required by RCW 90.58.080 (2)(a)(v), to review, update, and adopt its 
shoreline master program in accordance with the provisions of the Shoreline Management Act (RCW 
90.58) and the Shoreline Master Program Guidelines (WAC 173-26), on or before December, 2013.  
Benton County has secured grant funding from the Department of Ecology (DOE) in the amount of 
$200,000 for years 1 & 2, effective July 1, 2011; with an additional $50,000 anticipated in year 3 to 
be appropriated in the 2013-15 Biennium, to assist the County in completion of its Shoreline Master 
Program update. 
 
Planning Staff implemented a “Request for Proposals” process, scored, and selected consultants for 
interviews. The interview panel comprised of County, City, and technical advisory members included: 
Susan Walker, Valerie Smith, Adam Fyall, Rick Simon (City of Richland), Richard Visser (U.S. Fish 
and Wildlife) and Mike Shuttleworth.  The panel interviewed two groups of consultants to assist the 
County in updating its Shoreline Master Program: The Watershed Company and Parametrix/Anchor 
QEA.  The interview panel recommended upon completion of the interview process that the County 
contract with the “The Watershed Company” consultant group to complete the update of the Benton 

County Shoreline Master Program. A contract is required between Benton County and The 
Watershed Company to secure professional consultant services. The proposed contract is attached.  
 
SUMMARY 

Benton County Planning is proposing to contract with The Watershed Company to complete the 
updating of the Benton County Shoreline Master Program. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 

It is the recommendation of the Planning Staff that the Board of County Commissioners enter into a 
contract with The Watershed Company for assistance and completion of the County's Shoreline Master 
Program update. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT  

The amount of the attached The Watershed Company contract is not to exceed $191,836.00.  This 
amount is included in the grant funding from the DOE in the amount of $200,000 for years 1 & 2, 
which is effective July 1, 2011; with an additional $50,000 anticipated in year 3 to be appropriated 
in the 2013-15.  A supplement to the Planning Department’s budget will be required for this project. 
 
MOTION  
The Board of County Commissioners will need to make a motion to approve the attached contract 
with The Watershed Company. 

SMP CONTRACT Page 1 of 33

CurrentUser
Text Box
p. Contract w/The Watershed Company to Update the Benton Co. Shoreline Master Program



RESOLUTION 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY PLANNING: REGARDING CONTRACTING WITH THE 

WATERSHED COMPANY TO UPDATE THE BENTON COUNTY SHORELINE MASTER 

PROGRAM.  
 
WHEREAS, Benton County is required by RCW 90.58.080 (2)(a)(v), to review, update, and 
adopt its shoreline master program in accordance with the provisions of the Shoreline 
Management Act (RCW 90.58) and the Shoreline Master Program Guidelines (WAC 173-26), on 
or before December, 2013; and, 
 
WHEREAS, Benton County has secured grant funding from the DOE in the amount of $200,000 

for years 1 & 2, effective July 1, 2011; with an additional $50,000 anticipated in year 3 to be 
appropriated in the 2013-15 Biennium, to assist the County in completion of its Shoreline Master 
Program update; and, 
 
WHEREAS, on February 26, 2012, the Benton County Planning Department published a request 
for proposals from consultants to facilitate the update of the Benton County Shoreline Master 
Program; and, 
 
WHEREAS, after reviewing the proposal submitted and interviewing consultants, the Planning 
Department recommended that Benton County enter into a contract with The Watershed 
Company to complete the County's Shoreline Master Program update.; NOW THERFORE,  
 
BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of County Commissioners Benton County, Washington, hereby 
concurs with the attached service agreement between Benton County and The Watershed 
Company to complete the County's Shoreline Master Program update as described in the scope of 

work for an amount not to exceed $191,836.00; and, 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the term of this contract shall begin upon signature of both 
parties and shall expire on June 30, 2014. 

 
Dated this  _________ day of _______________2012. 
 
 
       
 Chairman of the Board 
  
       
 Member 
 
       
 Member 
  
 Constituting the Board of County 
 Commissioners of Benton County 
 Washington. 
Attest       

Clerk of the Board MES/djh 
cc: PA’s Office,  

SMP CONTRACT Page 2 of 33



SMP CONTRACT Page 3 of 33



AGENDA ITEM

Meetinq Date: 5/15/2012
Subject: Salary Placement

For Prosecutor's Ofc

Prepared bv: Andv Miller

Reviewed by:

TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED

Execute Contract Consent Aqenda x
Pass Resolution Public Hearinq
Pass Ordinance 1st Discussion
Pass Motion 2nd Discussion
Other: Approve for Hearinq Other

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

See Attached.

SUMMARY

See Attached.

RECOMMENDATION

1st Pass Salary Request

FISCAL IMPACT

None

MOTION

Move to pass Salary Request

G:\WP60\DOC\MPA\AGENDA\Salary Placement Agenda\AGENDA for Salary Placement.wpd

CurrentUser
Text Box
q. Salary Request Statement



CurrentUser
Text Box
r. Granting Franchise to Lightspeed Networks, Inc.







CurrentUser
Text Box
WSU Cooperative Update – M Ophardt



Benton County

Animal Control 

Update May 15, 2012
Prepared by: Keith Mercer

CurrentUser
Text Box
Animal Control Update – K Mercer



History

• On April 12, 2010 bids were solicited for the
construction of an Animal Control Facility

• On May 24, 2010 G2 Construction was awarded
the contract for construction of the Animal
Control Facility

• On February 14, 2011 the animal control
ordinance was approved and the Animal Control
Facility was officially open to the public



Mission Statement

• Balance the health, safety and welfare needs of
people and dogs within the unincorporated areas of
Benton County.

• Find a home for every dog that comes into our
facility.

• This is accomplished by protecting citizens from
dangers and hazards of uncontrollable dogs while
promoting responsible pet ownership.



Statistics
February 14, 2011 thru April 30, 2012

• 457 Dogs have come thru our shelter

• 242 Dogs have been adopted out

• 83 Dogs have been returned to their owner

• 63 Dogs have been transferred to rescue groups

• 7 Dogs are being fostered

• 3 Dogs are out on trial adoptions

• 24 Dogs currently reside in our shelter

– 14 of the 24 dogs are puppies



Community Involvement
• Safeway Adoption Event

• Farmers Market in 
Richland

• Benton-Franklin Fair 
Parade

• Safe Treat Street 
(Halloween Event)

• Santa Paws

• Craft Warehouse 
Adoption Event

• Jenny’s Hope Super 
Adoption Event

• PetSmart Adoption Events

• Daily Buzz Coffee Shop 
Grand Opening

• Paws Natural Pet 
Emporium

• Uptown Dog 
Walk/Adoption Event

• Spoke at Kennewick High 
and Finley High Schools

• Spoke at Pasco Kiwanis 
Club



Spay / Neuter Compliance

• Currently 222 of the 242 or 91.7% of the dogs

that were adopted have been spayed / neutered

• 16 dogs are too young to be altered

• 4 dogs were adopted the week before



Special Thanks

• Benton County Commissioners

• Animal Control Officers

• Volunteers

• Veterinarian Clinics (Banfield, Pet Medical Center, and Vista Vet)

• County Administrator – David Sparks 

• Deputy County Administrator  - Loretta Smith Kelty



Any Questions?


	Agenda Minutes 050812
	Approval of Minutes
	UProsecuting Attorney
	c. Amendment to Collective Bargaining Agreement for Juvenile Clerical
	The Board went into executive session at 9:20 a.m. for approximately 15 minutes to discuss pending litigation with DPA Ryan Brown.  Also present were Melina Wenner, Loretta Smith Kelty, David Sparks, and Cami McKenzie.  The Board came out of executive...


	MOTION: Commissioner Bowman moved to authorize the PA’s office to submit an offer of judgment to plaintiffs Crime, Justice & America Inc. and Ray Hrdlicka on behalf of Benton County and Sheriff Keane in the form deemed appropriate by the Prosecutor’s ...
	Commissioner Assignment Update
	Vouchers


	CA - Animal Control a
	CA - Assessor b
	CA - Auditor c
	CA - Auditor d
	CA - Commissioners e
	CA - Commissioners f
	CA - Commissioners g
	CA - Facilities h
	CA - Facilities i
	CA - Human Services j
	CA - Human Services k
	CA - Juvenile l
	CA - OPD m
	CA - OPD n
	CA - Personnel o
	CA - Planning p
	CA - Prosecuting Attorney q
	CA - Public Works r
	Timed - WSU Cooperative Update
	Timed Animal Control Update
	Web Packet 051512.pdf
	AGENDA (REVISED)
	Regular Board Meeting
	Tuesday, May 15, 2012
	Benton County Courthouse, Prosser, WA
	Facilities
	h. Purchase Authorization for Video Monitoring Equipment from URS Electronics




